
 

 
 

Buckinghamshire  

 Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
 
 

Agenda 
 

Date: Tuesday 7 July 2020 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: via video conference call 

 
Membership: Dr R Bajwa (Buckinghamshire Clinical Commissioning Group), A Macpherson 
(Buckinghamshire Council), M Shaw (Buckinghamshire Council), G Williams (Buckinghamshire 
Council), Dr J O'Grady (Director of Public Health, Buckinghamshire), G Quinton (Corporate Director - 
Adults and Health), T Vouyioukas (Corporate Director - Children's Services), I Darby (Buckinghamshire 
Council), J Baker OBE (Healthwatch Bucks), N Macdonald (Buckinghamshire Healthcare NHS Trust), 
R Majilton (Buckinghamshire Clinical Commissioning Group), Dr S Roberts (Buckinghamshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group), Dr J Sutton (Buckinghamshire Clinical Commissioning Group), D Williams 
(Buckinghamshire Healthcare NHS Trust), Dr K West (Buckinghamshire Clinical Commissioning 
Group), Dr N Broughton (Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust), Dr J Kent (Buckinghamshire, 
Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care System, M Gallagher (Clare Foundation) and 
K Higginson (Community Impact Bucks) 
 
Agenda Item 
 

Time Page No 

1 CONFIRMATION OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN 14:00  
    
2 WELCOME AND ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIRMAN 14:05  
    
3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
    
4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
    
5 PUBLIC QUESTIONS   
    
6 PUBLIC HEALTH OVERVIEW OF IMPACT OF COVID_19 IN 

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE AND HWB RECOVERY PLANS 
14:15  

 Presenter: Dr Jane O’Grady, Director of Public Health  
 
Buckinghamshire Public Health team have been at the forefront of 
the local response to the pandemic, providing epidemiological 
analysis and clinical public health expertise across the health and 

  

 



care system.  The Director of Public Health will present an overview 
of the impact of Covid_19 in Buckinghamshire, including what we 
know about the current situation and future impact at the meeting.  
 
Recommendation: The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note 
and discuss the information covered in the presentation at the 
meeting.   
 
 

7 OVERVIEW OF THE WHOLE SYSTEM APPROACH TAKEN TO 
RECOVERY FROM COVID-19 ACROSS BUCKINGHAMSHIRE AND THE 
INTEGRATED CARE PARTNERSHIP 

14:35 5 - 6 

  
The presentation at the meeting will provide detail on the 
Buckinghamshire Framework for place based recovery from Covid-
19, the 3 R’s to Recovery (Reset, Resilience and Restoration) led by 
the Member Recovery Board and the Buckinghamshire Recovery and 
Restoration Health and Care Plans led by the Integrated Care 
Partnership.  

 
Lead presenters: David Williams and Rodger Goodes (on behalf of 
Sarah Ashmead). The presentation will also include updates from the 
key leads from the NHS, Adult Social Care, Public Health and 
Children’s Services to outline how each organisation has managed in 
response to the pandemic and the key priorities for stepping up 
services, recovery and reset.  
 

 Recommendation: The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked 
to note and discuss the information covered in the 
presentation on the 7 July and consider the role the Health 
and Wellbeing Board should play in the next phase of 
Buckinghamshire’s recovery and response. 

 

  

8 OVERVIEW OF THE IMPACT ON COVID-19 ON PATIENTS AND THE 
VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR AND KEY PRIORITIES FOR 
RECOVERY 
 

15:10  

 Lead Presenters:  

 Jenny Baker OBE – Chair, Healthwatch Bucks and Miguel 
Souto – Interim Chief Executive, Healthwatch Bucks 

 Martin Gallagher – Chief Executive Officer, The Clare 
Foundation 

 Katie Higginson – Group Chief Executive Officer, Community 
Impact Bucks   

 

  

9 HEALTHWATCH BUCKS ANNUAL REPORT 
 

15:25 7 - 8 

 Title: Healthwatch Bucks Success and Renewal (Annual Report to 
the Health and Wellbeing Board) 
 
Presenter:  Jenny Baker OBE, Chair Healthwatch Bucks  
 

  



The presentation at the meeting will provide the Health and 
Wellbeing Board with an update on the work of Healthwatch Bucks 
and key elements of performance for the financial year 2019/20. 
 
To access Healthwatch reports and results for 2019-20 please visit 
the website: 
 https://www.healthwatchbucks.co.uk/category/results/  
 
Recommendations: Key recommendations for the Board and its 
members are: 
 

 To note the work and achievements of Healthwatch Bucks in 
2019/20 

 To note Healthwatch Bucks plans and priorities for 2020/21   

 To consider how Healthwatch Bucks can further help the 
Health and Wellbeing Board and health and social care 
providers improve people’s health and wellbeing, especially 
during recovery from Covid-19.  

 
10 COMMUNICATING AND ENGAGING WITH THE PUBLIC 

 
15:40 9 - 26 

  Buckinghamshire Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) 
Engagement Programme: Working together to improve 
health and social care in Buckinghamshire 
 
Presenter: David Williams, Director of Strategy and Business 
Development, Buckinghamshire Healthcare NHS Trust. 

 

 Communication and Engagement across the ICP  
 

Presenter: Kim Parfitt, Head of Communications – 
CHASC/CCG/ICS.  

  

  

11 UPDATE ON HWB GOVERNANCE, TERMS OF REFERENCE AND 
PLANS FOR JHWBS REFRESH 
 

15:55 27 - 32 

 Presenter:  Katie McDonald, Health and Wellbeing Lead Officer. 
 

  

12 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

16:00  

 Tuesday 6 October 2020 (pre-meet at 9.15 followed by the meeting 
at 10.00 am). 
 

  

 
 
 
If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of a disability, 
please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support in place. 
 
For further information please contact: Sally Taylor on 01296 531024, email 
democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk. 
 

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.healthwatchbucks.co.uk%2Fcategory%2Fresults%2F&data=02%7C01%7Csally.taylor%40buckinghamshire.gov.uk%7C7b0b8db40642452f34dd08d81c304677%7C7fb976b99e2848e180861ddabecf82a0%7C0%7C0%7C637290340948313644&sdata=ORa21rtvQPpVtmQM3HXorPGjds%2BoQqB%2FIK3kk4r7vo8%3D&reserved=0


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
Date: 7 July 2020 

Title:  Overview of the whole system approach taken to Recovery from Covid-19 across 
Buckinghamshire and the Integrated Care Partnership 
 
Author and/or contact officer: Sarah Ashmead, Deputy Chief Executive, Buckinghamshire 
Council and David Williams, Director of Strategy and Business Development, 
Buckinghamshire Healthcare Trust  
 
Purpose of Report: 

To provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with an overview of whole system plans across 
the county. Recovery is defined as the “Process of rebuilding, restoring and rehabilitating 
the community following an emergency or disaster, continuing until the disruption has been 
rectified, demands on services have been returned to normal levels, and the needs of those 
affected have been met”. It is a co-ordinated process of supporting affected communities in 
the reconstruction of the economic and social infrastructure and restoration of emotional, 
social, economic and physical well-being. Recovery in this case will need to enable people to 
develop a new ‘normal’ state until the risk of further Covid-19 outbreaks is mitigated. 
However unlike with a traditional disaster, the Coronavirus situation will not have an easily 
defined move from the emergency response phase into recovery phase.   
 
As the UK emerges from the first peak of cases and deaths from Covid-19 it is beginning to 
take the first cautious steps towards easing the lockdown and towards recovery. However, it 
will be several months before all services and activities are opened up again. This crisis has 
impacted on every section of our society and the process of recovery will take years rather 
than weeks or months.  
 
The presentation at the meeting will provide detail on the Buckinghamshire Framework for 
place based recovery from Covid-19, the 3 R’s to Recovery (Reset, Resilience and 
Restoration) led by the Member Recovery Board and the Buckinghamshire Recovery and 
Restoration Health and Care Plans led by the Integrated Care System.  
 
The presentation will also include updates from the key leads from the NHS, Adult Social 
Care, Public Health and Children’s Services to outline how each organisation has managed in 
response to the pandemic and the key priorities for recovery and stepping up services.  
 
Report for information, discussion, decision or approval: The presentation is for 
information and discussion at the board meeting.  

Related Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy Priority: The covid-19 response in 
Buckinghamshire is taking a whole system response and bringing together all key partners 
to work with the community to address the needs in Buckinghamshire. Reducing health 
inequalities and keeping residents safe from harm is at the forefront of this activity.   

Page 5

Agenda Item 7

https://www.buckscc.gov.uk/media/4509402/jhws2017april.pdf


 
 

Recommendations:  
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:  

 Discuss the presentations and progress made to date at the meeting;  

 Consider the role the Health and Wellbeing Board should play in the next phase of 
Buckinghamshire’s recovery and response. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 
 
 
Date: 7 July 2020 

Title: Healthwatch Bucks Annual Report 2019/20  

Author and/or contact officer: Jenny Baker, Chair; Miguel Souto, Interim Chief Executive;  

Report for information/decision or approval: For information 

Related Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy Priority: All five strategic priorities are 
relevant to Healthwatch Bucks activities in 2019/2020. 

Recommendations: Key recommendations for the Board and its members are: 

 to note the work and achievements of Healthwatch Bucks in 2019/20 

 to note Healthwatch Bucks plans and priorities for 2020/21   

 to consider how Healthwatch Bucks can further help the Health and Wellbeing Board 
and health and social care providers improve people’s health and wellbeing, 
especially during recovery from Covid-19.  

Executive summary 

1.1 This is an annual presentation designed to give insight to the Health and Wellbeing 

Board on the work of Healthwatch Bucks, providing an update on key elements of 

performance and impact in 2019/20 and looking ahead to plans and priorities for the 

ensuing year.  

Content of report 

1.2 The just published Annual Report covers activities and impact in eleven months up to 

the Covid-19 outbreak in March 2020.   The presentation will reflect the need for 

greater collaboration with system players in the aftermath of the epidemic. We also 

set out our service model and priorities for 2020/21 in the context of our new three-

year contract with Bucks Council. There are suggestions for further collaborations 

and how Healthwatch Bucks will continue to represent the patient/service user voice 

at all levels in the wake of Covid-19.   

Below is a summary of how we are now taking forward the new phase of our work:  

 Healthwatch Bucks is now working to  provide core Healthwatch activity plus  

Independent Health Complaints Advocacy via our subcontractor, The 

Advocacy People  

 Additional work on behalf of BHT and the CCG, latter to support development 

of Patient Participation Groups within PCNs 

Page 7

Agenda Item 9

about:blank


 
 Priorities for current year: Social Care, Primary Care and Mental Health- with 

cross-cutting themes of digital technology and service access 

 Care home visit programme to continue and when safe we will recommence 

Enter & Views with expanded scope to include GP surgeries and day 

opportunity centres 

 We will build on our work to ensure voices of underrepresented groups are 

heard, with strong focus on BAME groups. 

 We will continue to represent the patient/service user voice at all levels, both 

locally and regionally as the ICS and ICP evolves.  

Consultation and communication  

1.3 Consultation is inherent in our work as a core purpose of local Healthwatch. Our 

findings are published in reports disseminated widely across the county and 

nationally via Healthwatch England. We synthesise our year’s work into the Annual 

Report, also widely circulated.    

Next steps and review  

No further action required. 

Background papers  

To access our just published Annual Report 2019/20 visit:  

https://www.healthwatchbucks.co.uk/category/results/ 

Our Dignity in Care Annual Report can be found here: 

https://www.healthwatchbucks.co.uk/2020/06/dignity-in-care-annual-report-2019-20/ 

Reports for individual reports including Enter& View visits to care homes can be seen here: 

https://www.healthwatchbucks.co.uk/category/results/ 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Page 8

https://www.healthwatchbucks.co.uk/category/results/
about:blank
about:blank


 

Any planned changes are subject to appropriate patient and resident engagement and 
involvement 

 

Date: Tuesday 7 July 2020 
 
Title: Buckinghamshire Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) Engagement Programme: Working together 
to improve health and social care in Buckinghamshire 
 
Author and/or contact officer: Daniel Leveson, Deputy Director of Strategy, Buckinghamshire 
Healthcare Trust 
 
Report Sponsor: David Williams, Director of Strategy, Buckinghamshire Healthcare Trust 
 
Purpose of the Report:  The purpose of the report is to update the Health and Wellbeing Board on 
the approach to the Integrated Care Partnership Engagement Programme.  
 
Report for information/decision or approval: We are seeking the support of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board for our ICP approach to engaging communities in changes to health and social care. 
 
Related Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy Priority: Changes in Buckinghamshire ICP (ICP) aim to 
meet the health and social care needs of the Buckinghamshire population addressing the challenges 
of demographic change and population growth, health inequalities and financial sustainability. 
 
Recommendations: The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to support the Buckinghamshire ICP 
approach to engaging communities about changes related to health and social care. 

 
1.0  Executive Summary 

 
1.1 Covid-19 has fundamentally changed the way we provide health and social care in 

Buckinghamshire. We need to use this as a lens to reset services and undertake a 
comprehensive programme of public engagement about the changes we have already made 
and discuss some of the changes we are considering. 
 
We are proposing to develop a public engagement programme around the following 3 
themes: 
 

1) Reducing health inequalities: improving health for vulnerable groups and people living 
in deprived areas. 

2) Community services: organisations working together to promote independence and 
deliver care in people’s homes and communities. 

3) Keeping People Safe: delivering services differently to prevent the spread of infections. 
 

2.0 Introduction 

 
2.1  The Buckinghamshire Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) aims to meet the health and social 

care needs of the Buckinghamshire population addressing the challenges of demographic 
change and population growth, health inequalities and financial sustainability.  
 

2.2 On 9 June 2020, the Buckinghamshire ICP Partnership Board approved a paper that 
summarised the impact of Covid-19 and proposed a programme of public engagement about 
the changes we have made or are considering making. 

 
2.3 This paper summarises the proposed approach of the Buckinghamshire ICP to public 

engagement and is seeking support from the Health and Wellbeing Board.  
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 10

https://www.buckscc.gov.uk/media/4509402/jhws2017april.pdf


 

Any planned changes are subject to appropriate patient and resident engagement and 
involvement 

 

 
 
 
3.0 Bucks ICP: Our Journey So Far 
 

 
 
4.0 Responding to Covid-19 

 
4.1 In response to Covid-19 health and social care organisations have made rapid changes to 

how services are accessed and delivered. Covid-19 will continue to have profound impacts as 
we begin to reset the system.  Some of the key things to consider include: 
 

 The impact Covid-19 has had on the morbidity and mortality of our population, 

particularly in vulnerable groups and those receiving care in the community. 

 Changes in the behaviour of people accessing health and care services including A&E, 

social care, primary care, mental health and routine and urgent referrals.  

 The impact on our care processes and the rapid roll-out of non-face to face (digital or 

telephone) appointments including rapid changes in outpatient services and general 

practice consultations. 

 The impact on the health and wellbeing of health and care staff and the additional 

support they need as well as safety measures such as personal protective equipment 

(PPE).  

 The changes to our buildings and facilities and the impact of social distancing and 

segregation to reduce the risks of infection. 

 Growth in waiting lists for planned care and diagnostics (including cancer pathways) and 

the impact on people’s health. 

 Rapid technology adoption to enable remote work in communities and home-working 

for many support services staff. 

Page 10



 

Any planned changes are subject to appropriate patient and resident engagement and 
involvement 

 

 Collaboration to enable rapid discharges from hospitals and to support people in their 

homes to avoid unnecessary admissions. 

 Changes in how people access urgent care services implementing talk before you walk 

and appointment-based services via a single point of access. 

 The likely impact of recession on financial pressures and the impact on health 

inequalities as the wider determinants of health adversely affect people living in 

deprived areas. 

 
5.0 Previous Engagement 
 
5.1 Over the last few years we have undertaken engagement activities that relate to developing 

an integrated way of working: 
 

5.2 Integrated Care System – Staff Events 
 
Two events held in July 2017 reaching 300 staff across six organisations: Buckinghamshire 
County Council, Buckinghamshire Healthcare NHS Trust, NHS Aylesbury Vale and Chiltern 
Clinical Commissioning Groups, Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust, South Central 
Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust and FedBucks. 
From this event, a staff advisory group was created. 

 
5.3 Integrated Care System Health and Social Care Summit 

 
In November 2017, we organised Buckinghamshire’s health and social care summit to shape 
the future of health and social care integration. There was a wide spectrum of contributors 
at this event from across: 
 

 Voluntary and community sector 

 County Council 

 District councils 

 Town and parish councils 

 Wider public services 

 Health and social care 
professionals 

 Patient representatives 

 
Duncan Selbie, Chief Executive for Public Health England gave the national perspective on 
integration with local leaders providing the Buckinghamshire context. These helped inform 
debate amongst the 200 attendees on the priorities and challenges for: 
 

 Community working 

 Prevention 

 Mental Health 

 Carers 

 Housing and growth 

 
A video capturing attendees’ reflections from the day can be seen here - 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=FXNCsqWsha4&feature=youtu.be 
 
An overview of other related engagement activities can be found in Appendix 1. 
 

5.4 Covid-19 Related Engagement 
 
Engagement has been taking place or is due to take place during the current pandemic to 
understand the impact on our residents. Data from these surveys will feed into our understanding of 
the appetite for change and the impact. A summary of planned engagement can be found in 
Appendix 2. 

Page 11

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=FXNCsqWsha4&feature=youtu.be


 

Any planned changes are subject to appropriate patient and resident engagement and 
involvement 

 

 
 
6.0 Buckinghamshire ICP Programme of Engagement 
 
6.1 During the Covid-19 emergency we made changes in the interests of protecting the health of 

the population. If there are changes we have made, or changes we are considering, that we 
would like to make permanently we need to engage the public. 
 
Good communication and feedback from a diverse range of people alongside clinical 
perspectives will improve our understanding of the impacts of Covid-19 and the changes we 
have made. Each interaction is an opportunity for co-production, to identify things we may 
not have considered and to work with people to make changes sustainable 
 
We are proposing to develop content and engage communities during the summer about 
the following 3 themes: 
 

# Theme Changes / Ideas for Changes 

1 

Reducing Health Inequalities 
Improving health for 

vulnerable groups and people 
living in deprived areas 

-Understanding wider determinants of health and 
inequalities 
- Implementing joint prevention plan (smoking, obesity, 
alcohol & social isolation) 
- Enhanced services for vulnerable and  deprived populations  

2 

Community Services 
Organisations working 
together to promote 

independence and deliver care 
in people’s homes and 

communities  

- Integrated community home-first service (enabling people 
to stay at home or return home quickly) 
- Introduced Clinical Assessment and Treatment service 
(CATs) for frail people and piloted reduction in beds in 
community hospitals. 
- Home based crisis response for over-65’s & vulnerable 
people; enhanced intermediate care. 
- Enhanced services and support for care homes 
-  

3 

Keeping People Safe 
Delivering services differently 

to prevent the spread of 
infections 

- Non-face to face services, accessing care using technology 
such as video, telephone or emails. 
- Appointment only services (e.g. urgent care talk b4 you 
walk) to reduce people waiting in rooms for appointments. 
- Testing, tracking, PPE etc. in health and social care. 
- Changes to buildings to support infection prevention  
- Changes to how and where planned care is delivered to 
meet backlog and demand. e.g. regional waiting lists 

 
6.2 The engagement activity we wish to undertake will:  
 

 Support the ICP in understanding the views of residents (especially those living in 
deprived areas and members of BAME population) and other stakeholders on their 
views of health and social care services in the future. 

 Enable the ICP to co-design options for our approach to healthcare including physical 
location of services in dialogue with patients and stakeholders (including staff) 

 Ensure the ICP in Buckinghamshire is adhering to a process for redesigning services that 
is in line with best practice and legal requirements 

 
6.3 We recognise that our approach to how we undertake this process needs to take into 

account the impact of Covid-19 on how we can engage with our population and 
stakeholders. However, this does not mean we cannot undertake meaningful engagement. 

 

Page 12



 

Any planned changes are subject to appropriate patient and resident engagement and 
involvement 

 

We will take a phased approach to the engagement: 
  
Phase 1: Getting health support during lockdown – how was it for you? 
 
To help us start to explore the impact of changes in health and social care and develop 
options for new models of care that to deliver the aims of the ICP: 
 

 Online engagement survey to help us understand resident’s views on changes we have 
made or are considering making.  

 Online engagement survey to help us understand our staff’s (across all organisations 
within the ICP and VCS) views on changes we have made or are considering.  

 Engagement toolkit – to allow groups, families, town and parish councils, Patient 
Participation Groups etc. to hold their own discussions and then feedback to us. 

 
Phase 2: Workshops and Focus Groups  
This Phase will overlap with Phase 1. Its purpose is to ensure we target specific groups to 
understand their challenges and concerns. Where possible we will also undertake after the 
engagement survey to use the data gathered to understand the issues and co-design our 
approach to meet the aims of the ICP.  
 
Whilst, this will be for the selected agency to decide on exact methodology, we suggest it 
will be feasible to undertake some groups online or Face-to-face (when this becomes 
possible). 

 

 Co-design workshop of an appropriate length, with approximately 30-40 participants 
from all stakeholder engagement groups and ‘umbrella’ organisations, and those 
impacted by Covid.   

 5 to 7 x Focus Groups of at least 70 participants, specifically considering service users 
and patients and ensuring we address health inequalities and those impacted by Covid 

 20 x one-to-one interviews to reach different demographics or directors in 
organisations 

 
Engaging with Buckinghamshire Councils newly developed Community Boards to 
understand the needs of these communities  
 
Phase 3: Findings Report and Options Appraisal 

 

 Review the feedback and who we have heard from and prepare key findings report to 
make next decisions on options appraisals. 

 Identify what has been said. 

 Identify any gaps in who we have heard from. 
 
We will seek advice from the Getting Buckinghamshire Involved Steering group whose role it is to 
co-design and/or review all engagement and consultation activities for the health and care 
partnership 

 
7.0 Timeline and Governance 
 
7.1 It is proposed that the first phase of engagement will begin at the end of July and run 

through August into September. The final dates are subject to confirmation by the 
Buckinghamshire Integrated Care Partnership Board. We are undertaking a thorough 
stakeholder analysis to understand if there are particular groups that may not be able to 
participate fully during August. 

Page 13

https://www.yourcommunityyourcare.org.uk/getting-involved/getting-bucks-involved-steering-group/


 

Any planned changes are subject to appropriate patient and resident engagement and 
involvement 

 

 
 

7.2 Public Health is leading the Health Impact Assessment (HIA) and Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) in Buckinghamshire and will provide vital insight about the impacts of 
Covid-19 on population health and wellbeing. The ICP engagement process will work 
alongside the HIA and JSNA and community boards will play a pivotal role. 

 
7.3 The Bucks ICP Board will oversee the process and allocate leadership responsibilities and 

resources.  
 
8.0  Action required by the Health and Wellbeing Board  

 
8.1 The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to support the approach to engaging communities 

in changes to health and social care. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



 

Any planned changes are subject to appropriate patient and resident engagement and 
involvement 

 

Appendix 1: Previous Engagement 
 

Engagement Outcome  

Sustainable Transformation 
Partnership  
Engagement - 2017 

Public roadshow involving seven public meetings to gather the views from the 
localities on what was working well in their area and where there was room 
for improvement. 

Your Community, your care Roadshow 
programme 
Engagement - 2018 

The roadshows allowed us to engage with local groups, talking with residents 
about proposed changes to community services in their area and to find out 
what improvements they wanted to see.  
These roadshows reached over 600 people in 30 different groups gathering 
significant local views on the issues that concern people in their areas and 
have contributed to the formation of the community care model for the ICS. 

Co-production Group – Patient 
Outcomes for the ICS 
 

An initial workshop of over 30 people, who responded to an invite through 
the press and social media, looked at the outcomes we wanted to achieve for 
residents in Buckinghamshire. From this a small working group of patients 
worked on these and presented them to the CCG’s Executive.  
Once these were drafted and had been presented to wider audience, they 
were then promoted to people through the Lets Talk Health portal. The 
feedback was taken into account including redrafting using the Flesch-Kincaid 
readability tool. 
These patient outcomes and how they will be measured are the result of co-
production from start to finish. 

Equalities, Diversity and Inequalities 
Steering Group 

An Independent Advisory Group aims to take an independent role in 
facilitating engagement and to provide advice and expertise to 
Buckinghamshire CCG to help prevent ill health and reduce health 
inequalities.  
At its inaugural meeting Dr Ravi Balakrishnan and Dr Raj Thakkar were key 
speakers at the meeting. The group has received a lot of interest. 
As a result of this group we have: 

 Carried out blood pressure checks at a school on a range of staff, 
parents and grandparents from differing ethnic backgrounds. 50 
people were engaged, 23 had blood pressure checked with 6 advised 
to see GP 

 Helped promote survey for a GP surgery through community forums, 
mosques and schools 

 Arranging more health checks in areas of most deprivation to help 
reduce health inequalities 

 working with Public Health to increase support available to schools 
including health and wellbeing teaching within their curriculum 

Improved Access In June 2018, we undertook a survey through social media aimed at 
understanding what was important to our residents.  
It was promoted using a range of static posts as well as gifs and videos 
through Facebook and Twitter with the specific aim of reaching working 
adults. 
Materials were also created in easy read to reach those with a learning 
disability. 
Over a fieldwork period of 3 weeks, 1018 responses were reached with over 
60% being from those who work – our target audience. 
Results of the survey can be viewed here. These results were fed back to 
Fedbucks for creating the additional appointment times as well as the clinics 
and types of appointments residents wanted to see in these extended hours. 

 
 

Page 15

https://www.yourcommunityyourcare.org.uk/community-care-model/
https://www.buckinghamshireccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Longer-GP-opening-summary-of-results.pdf


 

Any planned changes are subject to appropriate patient and resident engagement and 
involvement 

 

Appendix 2: Covid-19 Related Engagement 
 

Organisation Survey Audience Covers 

Buckinghamshire 
Council 

Public Health Coronavirus 
Listening Exercise 

 All residents (including 
Residents Panel) 

 BAME community 

 Deprived groups 

 Men 

 Taxi drivers 

 Caring staff 

 Challenges people have had 

 Exercise 

 Alcohol 

 Smoking 

 Cooking/Food poverty 

 Worries/concerns 

Buckinghamshire 
Healthcare Trust 

Family and Friends Survey  Outpatients  Use of technology for appointments 

Healthwatch 
Bucks 

Your experience of health 
and social care services 
during Covid-19 

 All residents. More general in 
its scope, looking at patients 
across the board. 

 

Assessing the impact on 
routine treatment 

 Second project - look at a 
specific cohort of patients, such 
as Cancer patients or people 
with mental health issues, to 
whom delays or cancelled 
appointments are more critical 

 Explore people’s experience of 
delays to routine healthcare 
services, or services/treatments not 
being available 

 Experience of services adapting to 
provide digital consultation 

 

Community 
Impact Bucks 

(VCS) 

Covid-19 State of the 
Sector survey 

  To understand how Covid-19 has 
impacted the VCSE sector and the 
key challenges they are facing.  

 To inform VCSE recovery plans 

 To inform the support we and 
others such as the Council provide  

 Help to make the case for funders 
and others about the support the 
sector needs 

Engagement with the 
VCSE sector around the 
NHS England-funded 
project with BOB ICS 
 

  The project works to improve 
partnership working and 
communication at three levels: 
system (BOB ICS), place (e.g. 
Buckinghamshire Council area) and 
neighbourhood (e.g. Primary Care 
Networks and Community Boards).  

 It will do this through: 

 Embedding partnership working 
with the VCSE sector at all levels of 
decision-making within those 
structures 

 Supporting better communication 
and co-ordination between the VCSE 
sector by creating or strengthening 
VCSE leadership forums or alliances 

 

Page 16



Everyone working together so that the people of Buckinghamshire 

have happy and healthy lives 

ICP Communications and 
engagement - update 
 

P
age 17

A
ppendix 



Working together during Covid-19 
• Working collaboratively across the integrated care partnership to ensure consistent messaging to residents of 

Buckinghamshire, including embedding a Council/CCG communications team member within BHT to support their 

work whilst providing flow of communications to primary care 

• With the new council, we took a new approach to communications with a personal and friendly approach, with VLOGs 

by the Council Leader with Health and VCS colleagues as well as a daily VLOG from Rachael Shimmin from council 

staff 

• Key to all communications has been the need to share consistent messaging addressing: 

– Government messages for Coronavirus, frequently at short notice 

– Health messages including changes to services and concerns about residents not dealing with regular health 

issues 

– Wellbeing messages encouraging residents to stay active and eat healthily 

– Addressing concerns around mental health for both residents and staff 

• Regular briefings, incorporating health and wellbeing across Buckinghamshire to: 

– Residents (sent to over 220,000, with over 135,000 opening and positive feedback) 

– GPs 

– Members 

– Staff (across health and social care) 

– MPs 

– Town and Parish Councils 

– Businesses 

• Council Website is the hub of coronavirus information for social care providers and residents including health and 

wellbeing  

• Social media has been key channel for all organisations with engagement rates and reach exceeding anything seen 

previously 

• Report published on the LGAs website demonstrates all the work undertaken by the Council including communications 

2 Your community, Your care : Developing Buckinghamshire Together 

P
age 18

https://www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk/coronavirus/social-care-providers-hub/workforce/covid-19-adult-social-care-training/
https://www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk/coronavirus/social-care-providers-hub/workforce/covid-19-adult-social-care-training/
https://www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk/coronavirus/community-hub/health-mental-wellbeing/
https://www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk/coronavirus/community-hub/health-mental-wellbeing/
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/BC Best Practice Report 4 May 2020.pdf


Everyone working together so that the people of Buckinghamshire 

have happy and healthy lives 

ICP Communications and 
engagement 
Since March 2020 
 

P
age 19



4 Your community, Your care : Developing Buckinghamshire Together 

P
age 20



5 Your community, Your care : Developing Buckinghamshire Together 

P
age 21



Everyone working together so that the people of Buckinghamshire 

have happy and healthy lives 

ICP Communications and 
engagement 
Pre Covid-19 
 

P
age 22



Getting Bucks Involved Steering Group 
• 70 members covering organisations from the VCS, ICP and patient reps   

• Set up to review plans to involve local people in changes to health and care services - making 
sure we are talking to the right people at the right time and in the right way 

• The group have reviewed and provided comments and feedback on: 

7 

• Adult social care updates: 

– Aylesbury Opportunities Centre 

– Seeley’s House suspension 

– Thrift Farm update 

• Amersham ward closure 

• Anticoagulation Service 

• Better Housing, Better Health 

• Carers strategy 

• Community nurses team for children with learning 
disabilities 

• Family support service – for feedback on artwork for 
new service 

• Flu and winter campaign  

• Gluten free food items on prescription 

• Health and Wellbeing Board update 

• i-Cares and digital communications plan  

 

• ICS Engagement Framework 

• Long term plan Engagement 

• Prevention Grant applications 

• Transformation in children and young people’s 
Mental Health services 

• Unitary Council plans 

• Public and patient participation in strategic direction 
of Buckinghamshire mental health services 

• Community nurses team for children with learning 
disabilities,  

• social prescribing,  

• Winter Communications plan  

• Social prescribing communications plan,  

• Collecting feedback from the group for the ICP 
Shared Exec group  

• Updates on winter plan  

• Preparing of adulthood  

 

P
age 23



Residents Panel 
• Approximately 1,600 resident volunteers who have agreed to participate in regular research 

projects being carried out by the Integrated Care Partnership (ICP).  

• Recruited face to face in various locations around the county including shopping centres, 
libraries, gyms, sports clubs, university etc 

• Reflects the demographic breakdown of Buckinghamshire and panel member details are 
stored on a shared database  

• All six ICP organisations are jointly responsible for maintaining and reviewing panel 
membership and the database in line with GDPR 

• The panel has been created to help gauge residents’ views about: 

– the services we provide 

– barriers to and issues with using these services 

– areas that need improvement 

– potential changes 

 

 

8 

P
age 24



Your Voice Bucks 
• Working across all partners within the Buckinghamshire ICP, we have recently launched Your 

Voice Bucks.  

• This digital engagement tool from Delib, called Citizen Space, replaced all existing tools e.g. 
Let’s Talk Health Bucks, Councils Survey Monkey account.  

• In the short time it has been live, we are already receiving positive feedback on its visual 
appeal and usability 

 

 

 

9 

P
age 25

https://yourvoicebucks.citizenspace.com/
https://yourvoicebucks.citizenspace.com/


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 

Draft Buckinghamshire Health and Wellbeing Board Terms of Reference  

(2020 version for agreement  

1. Purpose 
  
Buckinghamshire’s Health and Wellbeing Board was established in 2013. The Health 
and Wellbeing Board is a partnership between local government, the NHS and the 
communities of Buckinghamshire. It includes local GPs, councillors, Healthwatch 
Buckinghamshire, and senior local government officers and voluntary sector 
representatives. The Board was established in 2013 and its formal rules and remit are 
set out in the Council’s constitution.  
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board aims:  
 

 To make a visible difference to health outcomes and reduce health inequalities across 
the county 

 To support and enable strong, motivated and empowered communities in 
Buckinghamshire 
 

 Deliver its statutory responsibilities and drive whole system leadership for health and 
wellbeing across Buckinghamshire 
 

2.  The Health and Wellbeing Boards statutory responsibilities  
 

 To prepare a Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNA) and Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategies (JHWS), a statutory duty of local authorities and clinical 
commissioning groups (CCGs).  

 To encourage integrated working between health and social care commissioners, 
including providing advice, assistance or other support to encourage arrangements 
under section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 (i.e. lead commissioning, 
pooled budgets and/or integrated provision) in connection with the provision of 
health and social care services.  

 A duty to sign off the Better Care Fund (BCF) The Department of Health requires that 
the Better Care Fund be jointly agreed Health and Wellbeing Boards, Clinical 
Commissioning Groups and Local Authorities with Adult Social Care responsibilities. 
They should align with all organisations’ existing strategic plans to ensure that all 
partners support the proposals for integration.  

 Producing a pharmaceutical needs assessment: This was formerly a responsibility of 
the primary care trust but the Health and Social Care Act 2012 transferred 
responsibility for the developing and updating of PNAs to health and wellbeing 
boards.  

 To use its power of influence to encourage closer working between commissioners of 
health-related services and the board itself.  
 
 

Page 27

Agenda Item 11



 

 
 

 To use its powers of influence to encourage closer working between commissioners 
of health-related services (such as housing and many other local government 
services) and commissioners of health and social care services.  

 Any other functions that may be delegated by the council under section 196(2) of the 
Health and Social Care Act 2012. 
 
 

3. Membership   
 
The membership of the board will be:  
 

• Cabinet Member for Community Engagement & Public Health, Buckinghamshire 

Council (Chair)  

• Clinical Director for Integrated Care, Buckinghamshire CCG (Vice-Chair)  

• Clinical Chair, Buckinghamshire CCG  

• Cabinet Member for Adults Social Care, Buckinghamshire Council  

• Cabinet Member for Children Services 

• Cabinet Member for Housing and Homelessness 

• Corporate Director,  Adults and Health (DASS) Buckinghamshire Council 

• Corporate Director, Children’s Services (DCS) Buckinghamshire Council  

• Service Director Public Health, Early Help and Prevention  

• Chair of Healthwatch Bucks 

• Chief Officer, Buckinghamshire Clinical Commissioning Group  & Integrated Care 

System Executive Lead 

• Deputy Chief Officer, Buckinghamshire CCG 

• Clinical Director for Mental Health, Buckinghamshire CCG 

• Clinical Director for Children's Services, Buckinghamshire CCG 

• Chief Executive, Buckinghamshire Healthcare NHS Trust 

• Chief Executive Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust 

• 2 x Buckinghamshire Voluntary Sector Representatives   

 

 National Commissioning Board Representatives (to be invited as required)  
 
Other members of the board may be co-opted and invited to meetings as required by 
specific agenda items. 
 
Quorum: At least 3 members of the following:  1 Elected Member of the Council & 1 
other Council Representative, 1 ICP or ICS Management Director   

4. Meeting Arrangements 
 
Frequency  

 The Board will meet four times in public per year as a minimum, with the flexibility 
for development sessions and agenda planning sessions held in private. The 
Chairman and Vice-Chair shall be responsible for agreeing meeting dates.  

Page 28



 

 
 

 

5. Chairmanship  

 The Chair of the Board will be nominated by the Leader of Buckinghamshire Council. 
 

 The Vice Chair being a nominee of the Integrated Care Partnership.  
 

 In the event that neither the Chairman nor the Vice-Chair is present but the meeting 
is quorate, the members present at the meeting shall choose a chairman from 
amongst their number for that meeting. 

 
6. Papers  

 The Board takes responsibility for its own agenda-setting through an annual planning 
session and agreement at board meetings.  

 The Chairman shall be responsible for agreeing the final meeting agendas and draft 
minutes for circulation.   

 All non-confidential papers will be publicly accessible on the council website.  
 

7. Substitutes  

 Every effort will be made by Board members to attend meetings.  However, all 
organisations represented on the Board will have the right to nominate substitutes to 
attend meetings.   

 The Chairman is responsible for agreeing attendance by anyone who is not a member 
of the Board.  
 

8. Secretariat Support  

 The Council shall provide support to the Chairman in setting dates for the meeting, 
preparing the agenda, and minuting the meeting. 

9. Governance and Accountability  

 The Board will be accountable for its actions to its individual member organisations. 

 Representatives will be accountable through their own organisations’ decision 
making processes for the decisions they take. It is expected that Members of the 
Board will have delegated authority from their organisations’ to take decisions within 
the terms of reference and constitution of the Board. 

 It is expected that decisions will be reached by consensus. Where consensus cannot 
be achieved, the Board will refer to the Councils constitution and decisions will be 
made by majority. The Chairman will have the casting vote.    
 

10. The role of a Health and Wellbeing Board member 
 

 The membership of the Health and Wellbeing Board provides a broad range of 
perspectives, experience and influence.  Members are asked to bring the insight, 

Page 29



 

 
 

knowledge, perspective and strategic capacity they have as individuals but must not 
act simply as a representative of their organisation, but with the interests of the 
whole of Buckinghamshire and its residents. 

 To effectively communicate outcomes and key decisions of the Board to their own 
organisations, acting as ambassadors for the work of the Board, and participating 
where appropriate in communications and stakeholder engagement activity to 
support the objectives of the Board 

 Contributing to the development of the JSNA and JHWBS (Happier, Healthier 
Buckinghamshire Shared Plan). Ensuring that commissioning is in line with the 
requirements of the JHWBS and working to deliver improvements in performance 
against outcome measures within the Health and Wellbeing Board Performance 
Dashboard.  

 Acting in a respectful, inclusive and open manner with all colleagues to encourage 
debate and challenge. 

 Declare any conflict of interest 
 

11. Engagement  

 Healthwatch Bucks is the Board’s lead for involving Buckinghamshire residents in the 
Boards work.  It is expected that the Healthwatch Bucks representative ensure 
people’s views are included in Board discussions, with elected members, GPs and 
voluntary sector representatives also having a role in this regard. 

 Formal public meetings will be held four times a year, where it is possible meetings 
will be webcast. Members of the public are welcome to attend all public meetings. In 
addition members of the public can ask questions at formal public meetings as set 
out in the guidance for public questions to the board.  

 The Board will hold regular engagement events, open to the public and/or 
providers. The Board will also support and report back on annual health events or 
debates from each Community Board.  These events will be in addition to the formal, 
public meetings of the Board and will be a means of: 
 

- Providing an avenue for members of the public to impact on the Board’s 
work; 

- Engaging the public and/or providers in the development of the JHWBS; 
- Developing the Board’s understanding of local people’s and providers’ 

experiences and priorities for health and wellbeing; 
- Communicating the work of the Board in shaping health and wellbeing in 

Buckinghamshire; 
- The Board will maintain a website with up-to-date information about its 

work.  
 

 12.  Strategic Support  

 The Integrated Care Partnership Board will act as a reference group for the Health 
and Wellbeing Board, providing advice and guidance as required.  

Page 30



 

 
 

 The JSNA Development group will have delegated responsibility for producing the 
JSNA and presenting regular summaries, assessments and escalating priority health 
and wellbeing issues to the board.  
 

13. Subgroups and links to other strategic boards  
 

 The Board has set out a partnership map of the boards and groups which have direct 
links to its work in table 1. This is not exhaustive of the landscape and will be 
reviewed on an annual basis.  The Boards reporting into the Health and Wellbeing 
Board will share their Terms of Reference and outline their responsibilities to the 
board.  
 

 
 
Table 1:  

 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 Overview of the whole system approach taken to Recovery from Covid-19 across Buckinghamshire and the Integrated Care Partnership
	9 Healthwatch Bucks Annual Report
	10 Communicating and Engaging with the Public
	HWB Buckinghamshire  ICP Communications and Engagement Update V1 240620

	11 Update on HWB Governance, Terms of Reference and plans for JHWBS refresh

